
Leon County Research and Development Authority 
Executive Committee Meeting 

Collins Building 
2051 E Paul Dirac Drive 
Tallahassee, FL 32310 

 
Thursday, March 24, 2022 

11:00am – 1:00pm 
 

Agenda 
 
Due to the ongoing Coronavirus/COVID-19 pandemic, anyone wishing to address the Committee may 
appear in person (attendance in the room may be limited) or submit written comments by 9:00am the day 
before the scheduled meeting date so that the comments can be distributed to the Committee members. 
Comments submitted after this time (up to the time of the meeting) will be accepted and included in the 
official record of the meeting. Email comments to: publicinput@inn-park.com and reference the meeting 
title and date in the subject line. Include your name and contact information.  

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Introduction of Guests 

 
3. Approval of Participation by Electronic Means (if needed) 

In accordance with the Bylaws, there being a quorum of members present in person, the members of 
the Committee present in person are required to approve participation by those participating via 
Electronic Means acknowledging that the COVID-19 pandemic constitutes extraordinary 
circumstances.  

 
4. Modifications to the Agenda 
 
5. Public Comment  

Any public comment received prior to the meeting will be provided to the Committee members in 
addition to any in-person public comment. 
 

6. Approval of Draft Meeting Minutes, January 20, 2022 (Attachment A)  
 

7. Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Year 2020-21 (Attachments B1 and B2) 
Link: B1- Draft Financial Statements 
Link: B2- Draft Report to Those Charged with Governance 
The Audit Committee recommends and requests approval of the Fiscal Year 2020-21 Audited Financial 
Statements.  Auditors Thomas Howell Ferguson issued an unmodified opinion with the report, and 
noted no irregularities, errors, or recommendations in its report on internal controls, report on 
compliance with local government investment policies, management letter or the attached Auditor’s 
Communication with Those Charged with Governance. 

Leon County R&D Authority 
Executive Committee Meeting | Mar. 24, 2022 

Page 1 of 9

https://innovation-park.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/B1-0921-fs-LCRDA-DRAFT-030122.pdf
https://innovation-park.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/B2-0921-Rpt-to-those-charged-with-governance-LCRDA-DRAFT-030122.pdf


8. Thomas Howell Ferguson Professional Auditing Services Agreement Extension (Attachments C1 and
C2)
The Audit Committee recommends and requests approval of the attached Second Amendment to the
Professional Auditing Services Agreement with Thomas Howell Ferguson to extend the agreement for
two years at a cost of $19,800 for the 2022 fiscal year and $20,400 for the 2023 fiscal year. The fee
history with the firm is also attached.

9. NAI Talcor Property Management and Accounting Services Agreement Extension (Attachment D)
Staff requests approval of the attached Second Amendment to the Property Management and
Accounting Services Agreement to extend the term of the contract for one-year with a 4% increase in
the management fee from $7,354.37 to $7,648.56 per month. The original three-year agreement
provided 2.5% per year increases, and the prior year extension was awarded with no fee increase. The
current agreement is due to expire on September 30, 2022 and provides that the term may be extended
for additional one-year terms by mutual agreement of the parties.

10. Florida State University Research Foundation (“FSURF”) Loan for North Florida Innovation Labs
(“NFIL”) (Attachments to be provided in a supplement prior to the meeting)
The board of governors previously approved a $3,000,000 line of credit from FSURF as specified in
its Commitment Letter dated January 24, 2022 and authorized either the Executive Committee or the
NFIL Oversight Committee to approve the final loan documents at the discretion of the Board Chair
and the Executive Director.  In response to higher-than-expected NFIL building construction bids, staff
requested and have received support from FSURF for an increase in the loan amount to $4,000,000
subject to approval by its board. The increased loan amount is required to be approved by the Board of
Governors.
Staff will review with the committee draft loan documents, with the increased loan amount, to be
presented to the board of governors for final approval.

11. Staff Update
a. Executive Director
b. Director of North Florida Innovation Labs

12. New Business

13. Adjourn

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND EVENTS 

NFIL Oversight Committee 
Wednesday, March 30, 2022 

8:00am – 9:30am 

Board of Governors Meeting 
Thursday, April 7, 2022 

11:00am – 1:00pm 

Executive Committee Meeting 
Thursday, May 19, 2022 

11:00am -1:00pm 

Leon County R&D Authority 
Executive Committee Meeting | Mar. 24, 2022 

Page 2 of 9



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

    
 

   
 

  
 

  
    

 

  
 

 

   
           

        
  

  
 

  
 

  
 

   
 

 

    
  

 

  
    

   
    

Attachment A 
Page 1 of 4

Leon County Research and Development Authority 
Executive Committee Meeting 

Collins Building 
2051 E Paul Dirac Drive 
Tallahassee, FL 32310 

Thursday, January 20, 2022 
11:00am – 1:00pm 

DRAFT Minutes 

Members in Attendance In-Person: Kevin Graham, Tom Allen, Dave Ramsay 

Members in Attendance by Electronic Means: Kimberly Moore 

Members Not in Attendance: None. 

Guests: Ron Miller, Peggy Bielby (LCRDA Staff). 

1. Call to Order
Chair Kevin Graham called the meeting to order at 11:05am.

2. Introduction of Guests
All present introduced themselves.

3. Approval of Participation by Electronic Means
In accordance with the Bylaws, there being a quorum of members present in person, the members of 
the Committee present in person are required to approve participation by those participating via 
Electronic Means acknowledging that the COVID-19 pandemic constitutes extraordinary 
circumstances.
Tom Allen offered a motion to approve participation by electronic means. Dave Ramsay seconded the 
motion which passed unanimously with Kimberly Moore not voting.

4. Modifications to the Agenda
None.

5. Public Comment
None.

6. Approval of Draft Meeting Minutes, September 21, 2021
Dave Ramsay offered a motion to approve the draft meeting minutes. Tom Allen seconded the motion 
which passed unanimously.

7. FSURF Loan for North Florida Innovation Labs Construction
The Florida State University Research Foundation (FSURF) is discussing terms with staff for a
$3,000,000 line of credit for the construction of the North Florida Innovation Labs. Staff will present 
the status of the discussion at the meeting.

Leon County R&D Authority 
Executive Committee Meeting | Mar. 24, 2022 

Page 3 of 9



      
      

  
  

 

 
 

   
    

 
 

 
 

   
    

   
  

   
     

    
 

 
  

    
    

         
    

          
 

 

  
   

      
   

       
       

 
 

  
      

   
 

  
 

 

Attachment A 
Page 2 of 4

Ron Miller reported on the status of the discussions and negotiations with the FSU Research 
Foundation, the terms and structure. Dave Ramsay offered a motion to direct staff to prepare the 
documents as discussed and move forward with the line of credit agreement with the FSU Research 
Foundation. Tom Allen seconded the motion which passed unanimously with Kevin Graham recusing 
himself from the vote. 

8. ITB 22-01 Request for Bids: North Florida Innovation Labs Construction-Bid Instructions 
Amendment 1 
Staff requests approval of the attached amendment to the Bid Instructions for ITB 22-01 to provide for 
an appeal process for ITB 22-01 Request for Bids: North Florida Innovation Labs Construction. 
Tom Allen offered a motion to approve the amendment, adding the word “calendar” to the 14-day time 
limit to appeal to the NFIL Oversight Committee. Dave Ramsay seconded the motion which passed 
unanimously. 

9. IBR 21-04 HVAC Preventative Maintenance Services Agreement 
Staff requests approval of its recommendation to award Informal Bid Request 21-04 to the lowest 
bidder Engineered Cooling Services and approve the attached agreement.  The Authority received three 
responsive and responsible bids to its request for bids, and Engineered Cooling Services’ price is 
$13,797.48 per year, which was $11,082.52 per year less than the second bidder.  The agreement is for 
one year with Authority options for two additional one-year terms at the same price. 
Dave Ramsay offered a motion to approve the award to Engineered Cooling Services and the attached 
agreement. Tom Allen seconded the motion which passed unanimously. 

10. Budget Adjustment: Phipps Lease Revenue 
The approved budget for FY 2021-22 included lease revenue of $104,864 from the Phipps Building 
lease with the Florida Department of Transportation calculated at rates which will be in effect beginning 
October 1, 2022, in error. The correct lease revenue is $128,635, an increase of $23,771.  Staff requests 
approval of the revised budget to reflect the correction. 
Dave Ramsay offered a motion to approve the revised budget. Tom Allen seconded the motion which 
passed unanimously. 

11. Staff Reports 
a. Executive Director 

Ron Miller stated he had nothing additional to report, but provided an update for Bill Lickson: 
b. Director of North Florida Innovation Labs 

Ron Miller noted that Bill Lickson was presenting at the Florida Association of Counties Innovation 
Day and reported that he is continuing his work on grants, recruiting for the Director of Marketing 
& Engagement position, NFIL groundbreaking planning, and StartupWind. 

12. New Business 
Dave Ramsay noted Dan Heater, retired director of facilities management at University of Iowa, will 
visit the Park following the meeting. 

13. Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 12:16pm. 

Leon County R&D Authority 
Executive Committee Meeting | Mar. 24, 2022 

Page 4 of 9

https://11,082.52
https://13,797.48


Attachment A 
Page 3 of 4

Leon County R&D Authority 
Executive Committee Meeting | Mar. 24, 2022 

Page 5 of 9



Attachment A 
Page 4 of 4

Leon County R&D Authority 
Executive Committee Meeting | Mar. 24, 2022 

Page 6 of 9



 

 

 
  

  
 
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

    
   

 

 
  

 

  

 
 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THOMAS HOWELL FERGUSON, P.A. AND

LEON COUNTY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT (the “Amendment”), made as of the 7th day of April 
2022 by and between the LEON COUNTY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, a 
public Authority created pursuant to Chapter 159, Part V, Florida Statutes (“Authority”), and THOMAS 
HOWELL FERGUSON, P.A., a State of Florida corporation (“Auditor”) (hereinafter collectively 
referred to as “Parties”). 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, the Authority and Auditor have previously entered into a contract dated August 3, 
2017, for audits of financial statements for fiscal years ending through September 30, 2021, as amended 
(the “Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Agreement in order to extend the term of the 
Agreement and adjust the cost of services for the extended term of the Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants herein set forth, the 
sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Section 1 of the Agreement is amended extending the term of the agreement to include audits of 
the financial statements for fiscal years ending September 30, 2022, and September 30, 2023; and

2. Section 3 of the Agreement is amended to include the cost of services (“Price”) for fiscal year 
ending September 30, 2022, shall be $19,800.00; and for the fiscal year ending September 30, 
2023, shall be $20,400.00; and

3. All other provisions of the agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this amendment to be executed on the day and 
year first written above. 

Leon County Research & Development Authority Thomas Howell Ferguson. P.A. 

By:____________________________________ By:______________________________ 
Kevin Graham, Chair Allison Harrell, Shareholder 

Attachment C1 
Page 1 of 1

Leon County R&D Authority 
Executive Committee Meeting | Mar. 24, 2022 

Page 7 of 9

https://19,800.00


  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Thomas Howell Ferguson‐Fee History & Proposal 3/9/2022 13:02 
Year‐end Fee 

2012 23,000.00 
2013 18,000.00 ‐22% 
2014 20,500.00 14% 
2015 22,000.00 7% 
2016 18,550.00 ‐16% 
2017 16,500.00 ‐11% Previous RFP 
2018 17,000.00 3% 
2019 17,500.00 3% 
2020 17,500.00 0% 
2021 18,000.00 3% 

Proposed 
2022 19,800.00 10% 4% Annualized Since 2017 
2023 20,400.00 3% 

Attachment C2 
Page 1 of 1

Leon County R&D Authority 
Executive Committee Meeting | Mar. 24, 2022 

Page 8 of 9



 

 

 
 

  
 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
  

 

 
  

 

  

 
 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
TALCOR COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE SERVICES, INC. AND 

LEON COUNTY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT (the “Amendment”), made as of the 7th day of April, 
2022 by and between the LEON COUNTY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, a 
public Authority created pursuant to Chapter 159, Part V, Florida Statutes (“Authority”), and TALCOR 
COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE SERVICES, INC., a State of Florida corporation (“Agent”) 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “Parties”). 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, the Authority and Agent have previously entered into an agreement dated August 2, 
2018, for Property Management and Accounting Services and amended it on April 1, 2021 (the 
“Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Agreement in order to extend the term of the 
Agreement; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants herein set forth, the 
sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Section 5.1 of the Agreement is amended to extend the term of the agreement for an additional
term of one (1) year ending on September 30, 2023; and

2. The following is added to Section 4.1.1 of the Agreement:
For services rendered pursuant to and during the one-year term ending September 30, 
2023 for Agent's property management, reporting, and accounting services, Authority 
shall pay Agent a management fee (the "Management Fee") of $7,648.56 per calendar 
month, which is a total of $91,782.72 per year. This Management Fee is comprised of 
$2,294.56 per month for accounting and reporting services and $5,354.00 per month for 
property management services. The Management Fee shall be pro-rated for any portion 
of a calendar month during the Term. 

3. All other provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this amendment to be executed on the day and 
year first written above. 

Leon County Research & Development Authority Talcor Commercial Real Estate Services, Inc. 

By:____________________________________ By:______________________________ 
Kevin Graham, Chair E. Edward Murray, President

Attachment D 
Page 1 of 1

Leon County R&D Authority 
Executive Committee Meeting | Mar. 24, 2022 

Page 9 of 9

https://5,354.00
https://2,294.56
https://91,782.72
https://7,648.56

	2022-03-24 Agenda.pdf
	A- 2022-01-20 Approved DRAFT mins.pdf
	C1- THF Auditing Services Agreement 2nd Amendment.pdf
	C2- THF Fee History.pdf
	D- Property Management and Accounting Services Agreement 2nd Amendment DRAFT .pdf



